
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Monday, 19 June 2017 
11.00 am 
 
 
 
 
 

5th Floor Board Room, 5th Floor (North 
side), Layden House, 76-86 Turnmill Street, 
London, EC1M 5LG 
 
 



 

 

 

Guidance notes for members and visitors 
Layden House, 76-86 Turnmill Street, London, EC1M 5LG 

 

Please read these notes for your own safety and that of all visitors, staff and tenants. 
 
Welcome! 
Layden House is located directly opposite the Turnmill Street entrance to Farringdon station, which is 
served by the Circle, Hammersmith & City, and Metropolitan lines as well as the Thameslink national 
rail route.  
 
Security 
Layden House has a swipe card access system meaning that a swipe enabled security passes will 
be required to access the lifts and floors 1-5.   
 
Most LGA governance structure meetings will take place on the ground floor of Layden House 
which is open access and therefore does not require a swipe enabled security pass.  Access to the 
rest of the building (floors 1-5) is via swipe enabled security passes. 
 
When you visit Layden House, please show your Local Government House security pass to 
reception and they will provide you with a temporary pass which will allow you access to  floors 1  5 
if required.  Please don’t forget to sign out at reception and return your security pass when 
you depart. 
 
If you do not have a LGH Security Pass, please email member services with your name and a recent 
photo and a pass will be made for you. You can pick this up from the Layden House reception desk 
on your next visit. 
 
Fire instructions 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, vacate the building immediately via the nearest fire exit onto 
Turnmill Street and take the next turning on your left – Benjamin Street to St John’s Gardens. 
DO NOT USE THE LIFTS. 
DO NOT STOP TO COLLECT PERSONAL BELONGINGS. 
DO NOT RE-ENTER BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO. 
 
Soft Seating Area  
There is a small soft seating area on Floor 2 which will also operate as an ‘Open Council’ area for 
visiting members and officers from member councils.  Please note however that unlike Open Council, 
this area does not have tea and coffee facilities, nor access to computers.     
 
Toilets 
There are accessible toilets on the Ground Floor, 2nd and 4th floors.   
 
Accessibility 
If you have special access needs, please let the meeting contact know in advance and we will do our 
best to make suitable arrangements to meet your requirements. 
 
Parking is available at the rear of the building for Blue Badge holders, accessed via the Turks Head 
Yard, North underpass.  Disabled WCs are situated on the ground and 4th floors. An induction loop 
system is available in the 5th floor conference venue.  For further information please contact the 
Facilities Management Helpdesk on 020 7664 3015. 
 
 
 

mailto:memberservices@local.gov.uk


 

 

 
Guest WiFi in Layden House  
WiFi is available in Layden House for visitors. It can be accessed by enabling “Wireless Network 
Connection” on your computer and connecting to LGA-Free-WiFi. You will then need to register,  
either by completing a form or through your Facebook or Twitter account (if you have one). You only 
need to register the first time you log on.  
 
Further help 
Please speak either to staff at the main reception on the ground floor, if you require any further help 
or information. You can find the LGA website at www.local.gov.uk  
 
Why have the LGA’s Headquarters moved?  
The LGA has temporarily relocated from Local Government House (LGH) in Smith Square to Layden 
House in Farringdon, effective from Monday 31 October 2016.  This is to allow extensive 
refurbishment work to be carried out to LGH.  
 
The refurbishment works will see the ground floor conference centre and all meeting rooms fully 
refurbished. Floors 1, 2 and 3 will be upgraded and released for commercial letting to enable the 
LGA to maximise the income from this building as part of its drive for financial sustainability. A new 
and larger Open Council will be located on the seventh floor. The refurbishment is expected to last 
for nine months and we expect to be back in LGH by September 2017. 
 

We appreciate your understanding and flexibility during this time. 

 

http://www.local.gov.uk/


 

 

 
 
LGA Community Wellbeing Board 
19 June 2017 

 
There will be a meeting of the Community Wellbeing Board at 11.00 am on Monday, 19 June 2017 
5th Floor Board Room, 5th Floor (North side), Layden House, 76-86 Turnmill Street, London, EC1M 
5LG. 
 
A sandwich lunch will be available after the meeting.  
 
Attendance Sheet: 
Please ensure that you sign the attendance register, which will be available in the meeting room.  It 
is the only record of your presence at the meeting. 
 
Political Group meetings: 
The group meetings will take place in advance of the meeting. Please contact your political group as 
outlined below for further details. 
 
Apologies: 
Please notify your political group office (see contact telephone numbers below) if you are unable to 
attend this meeting. 
 
Conservative: Group Office: 020 7664 3223     email:     lgaconservatives@local.gov.uk   
Labour:  Group Office: 020 7664 3334     email:     Labour.GroupLGA@local.gov.uk  
Independent:  Group Office: 020 7664 3224     email:     independent.grouplga@local.gov.uk   
Liberal Democrat: Group Office: 020 7664 3235     email:     libdem@local.gov.uk 
 

Location:  
A map showing the location of Layden House is printed on the back cover.   
 
LGA Contact:  
Alexander Saul 
0207 664 3232 / alexander.saul@local.gov.uk 
 
Carers’ Allowance  
As part of the LGA Members’ Allowances Scheme a Carer’s Allowance of up to £7.50 per hour is 
available to cover the cost of dependants (i.e. children, elderly people or people with disabilities) 
incurred as a result of attending this meeting. 
 
Social Media 
The LGA is committed to using social media in a co-ordinated and sensible way, as part of a 
strategic approach to communications, to help enhance the reputation of local government, 
improvement engagement with different elements of the community and drive efficiency. Please feel 
free to use social media during this meeting. However, you are requested not to use social media 
during any confidential items. 
 
The twitter hashtag for this meeting is #lgacwb 
 

mailto:lgaconservatives@local.gov.uk
mailto:Labour.GroupLGA@local.gov.uk
mailto:independent.grouplga@local.gov.uk
mailto:libdem@local.gov.uk


 

 

 

 
 

Community Wellbeing Board – Membership 2016/2017 
 
Councillor Authority 

  
Conservative ( 7)  
Izzi Seccombe (Chairman) Warwickshire County Council 

David Coppinger Windsor & Maidenhead Royal Borough 
Graham Gibbens Kent County Council 
Keith Glazier East Sussex County Council 

Liz Mallinson Cumbria County Council 
Vic Pritchard Bath & North East Somerset Council 

Ernest White Leicestershire County Council 
  

Substitutes  
Linda Chilton Derbyshire County Council 

Judith Wallace North Tyneside Council 
Sue Woolley Lincolnshire County Council 

  
Labour ( 7)  

Linda Thomas (Vice-Chair) Bolton Council 
Jonathan McShane Hackney London Borough Council 

Lynn Travis Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council 
Carole Burdis North Tyneside Council 

Phil Bale Cardiff Council 
Jackie Meldrum Lambeth London Borough Council 

Rachel Eden Reading Borough Council 
  

Substitutes  
Maureen Cummings Wakefield Metropolitan District Council 

Azhar Ali Lancashire County Council 
Robin Moss Bath & North East Somerset Council 

  
Independent ( 2)  

Kate Allsop (Deputy Chair) Mansfield District Council 
Vacancy Independent Group 

  
Substitutes  

Helen Grant Richmondshire District Council 

  
Liberal Democrat ( 2)  
Richard Kemp CBE  (Deputy 
Chair) 

Liverpool City Council 

Doreen Huddart Newcastle upon Tyne City Council 

  

Substitutes  

Lucy Nethsingha Cambridgeshire County Council 



 

 

 
 

 
 

Agenda 
 

Community Wellbeing Board 
 
Monday 19 June 2017 
 
11.00 am 
 
5th Floor Board Room, 5th Floor (North side), Layden House, 76-86 Turnmill Street, London, 
EC1M 5LG 
 

 

 Item Page  

1.   Apologies and Declarations of Interest 
 

  

2.   Presentation from the Jo Cox Commission 
 

  

 A representative from the Jo Cox Commission will attend to discuss 
the Commission’s work.  
 
This will be an opportunity to hear more about the Commission and to 
explore whether and how the LGA and local councils may be able to 
contribute or link into the Commission’s work. 
 

  

 Confidential   

3.   Care and support reform 
 

1 - 6  

 The agenda item will start with reflections and insights from Glen 
Garrod, Vice President of the Association of Directors of Adult Social 
Services, and Vicky McDermott, Chair of the Care and Support 
Alliance.  
 

  

4.   The Government's health and social care policy agenda 
 

7 - 16  

 Non-confidential – for noting   

5.   Community Wellbeing Board achievements 2016/17 
 

17 - 30  

6.   Update on Other Board Business 
 

31 - 32  

7.   Note of the last meeting 
 

33 - 39  

    
 
 Date of Next Meeting: Thursday, 28 September 2017, 11.00 am, Layden 

House, 76-86 Turnmill Street, London EC1M 5LG 



Document is Restricted

Page 1

Agenda Item 3





Document is Restricted

Page 7

Agenda Item 4





 

Community Wellbeing Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 
 

Community Wellbeing Board Achievements 2016/17 

Purpose  
 
For information and discussion. 
 
Summary 
 
This report provides and overview of the issues and work the Board has overseen during the 
last year. It sets out key achievements in relation to the priorities of the Community Wellbeing 
Board in 2016/17.   
 
 
 

 
Recommendation 
 
Members are invited to note the achievements against the Board’s priorities in 2016/17. 
 
Action 
 
Officers to action as appropriate. 
 

 
 
 

Contact officer:  Mark Norris 

Position: Principle Policy Adviser 

Phone no: 020 7664 3241 

Email: mark.norris@local.gov.uk   

 
  

Page 17

Agenda Item 5

mailto:mark.norris@local.gov.uk


 

 

Community Wellbeing Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 
 

 

Board Achievements 2016/17 
 
Background 
 
1. The Community Wellbeing Board has responsibility for Local Government Association's 

(LGA) activity in the areas of the wellbeing of adults, including lifelong learning, training, 
health and social care and for the wellbeing of all people in the areas of community 
cohesion, asylum and immigration. The LGA has continued to promote the vital 
leadership role of local government in the health and care system.  

 
LGA Asylum, Refugee and Migration Task Group 

 
2. The LGA Asylum, Refugee and Migration Task Group reports to both the Community 

Wellbeing and Children and Young People Board. Chaired by Cllr David Simmonds, the 
Task Group and cross-Board lead LGA members have been involved in the development 
of a range of national schemes that support refugees and asylum seekers. Working with 
local authorities, regional bodies and national partners, it has also flagged key issues 
including the need for additional resources, greater alignment across the programmes 
and more transparent and real time data. The LGA contributed directly to the response to 
the Calais camp clearance and the development of a national transfer scheme for 
unaccompanied children, and is continuing to raise concerns around the impact of current 
dispersal system for adults and families. This has included a meeting and an event with 
the Immigration Minister in November and February respectively, and resources and 
information to support councils as outlined on the LGA website. Councils have great 
expertise in bringing communities together and the Safer and Stronger Communities 
Board has pulled together resources to support local activity on cohesion and will lead 
the response to Casey Review of integration. 

 
Care and Health Improvement Programme 
 
3. Working with the Care and Health Improvement Programme, the ongoing programme of 

leadership development for lead members included ongoing support for regional 
networks, a leadership essentials programme, and an induction event, as well as ongoing 
updates of the online ‘must knows’ for new members. The LGA continued to work closely 
with the Association of Directors of Adult Social Services on a sector led improvement 
approach to supporting councils on key issues in adult social care, such as adult 
safeguarding, Transforming Care and implementing the Mental Capacity Act including the 
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards. The National Children and Adult Services (NCAS) 
conference was well attended, including sessions led by Board lead members and a 
closed session for members with the (then) new Parliamentary under Secretary, David 
Mowat MP. 
 

Public Health Transformation and Health Protection  

  

4. The last 12 months has been a year when local government has been grappling with 
reduced public health resources, and this was in the context of continuing reductions to 
overall council funding and pressures on the NHS. Interventions to tackle teenage 
pregnancy, excessive alcohol consumption, physical inactivity, sexually transmitted 

Page 18

Agenda Item 5

http://www.local.gov.uk/topics/communities/refugees-and-asylum-seekers/refugees-and-unaccompanied-children
https://www.local.gov.uk/topics/social-care-health-and-integration/adult-social-care/lead-member-development
https://www.local.gov.uk/topics/social-care-health-and-integration/adult-social-care/must-knows-lead-members-adult-social-care
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/our-improvement-offer/care-and-health-improvement/improve-safeguarding-vulnerable
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/our-improvement-offer/care-and-health-improvement/improve-safeguarding-vulnerable
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/our-improvement-offer/care-and-health-improvement/transforming-care
https://www.local.gov.uk/topics/social-care-health-and-integration/adult-social-care/mental-capacity-act-including-dols


 

 

Community Wellbeing Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 
 

infections and substance misuse cannot be seen as an added extra for health budgets. 
The LGA have argued that reductions in councils' public health grants of more than £530 
million by the end of the decade will impact on councils' ability to continue their good 
work. To take vital money away from the services which can be used to prevent illness 
and the need for treatment later down the line and ease the pressure on the NHS is 
counter-productive. 

 

5. Air quality went to the top of the public health agenda and became the focus of intense 
media attention. Local authorities have a central role in achieving improvements in air 
quality; their local knowledge and interaction with the communities that they serve mean 
that they know the issues on the ground in detail. They are best placed to decide and 
work with partners to implement the appropriate solutions in regards to local transport, 
smoke control, planning and public health. LGA have worked collaboratively with Defra 
and PHE to generate an updated suite of tools which will help local authorities to take 
action to improve air quality. 

 

6. Childhood obesity continued to be a priority for central and local government. As part of 
our child obesity campaign work, we have called for fundamental reforms, such as a 
mandatory reduction in sugar in soft drinks, better sugar labelling on food and drink 
products, calorie counts on menus in chain restaurants, and for councils to be given 
powers to ban junk food advertising near schools. The LGA called for the income 
generated from the proposed sugar levy on soft drinks to be administered by councils, 
who are best placed to work with schools and communities to fight childhood obesity. 

 

7. The LGA achieved a significant milestone on behalf of its membership in the 
commissioning of prevention services at the Royal Courts of Justice. The National Aids 
Trust (NAT), supported by the LGA, was successful at the High Court and subsequently 
in the Appeal Court in challenging NHS England’s decision that it did not have the legal 
powers to commission the HIV treatment Pre Exposure Prophylaxis, also known as PrEP. 
NHS England said the onus fell on councils to fund PrEP, as local authorities are 
responsible for HIV prevention. The LGA branded this as a “selective and untenable” 
reading of the Public Health Regulations 2013. 

 

8. In March we held our fifth Annual Public Health Conference. The LGA's national annual 
flagship conference on public health offered a valuable opportunity to analyse the 
implications for local government and public health. The event highlighted the innovative 
work already being undertaken by councils and public health teams, with their partners 
and communities, and it looked at how to build on existing best practice to identify and 
tackle the challenges and opportunities of the new public health landscape.  

 

9. In the same month we published Public health transformation four years on: maximising 
the use of resources a series of case studies showing how local authorities are making 
progress on improving health and wellbeing and tackling health inequalities since public 
health was transferred to local authorities in April 2013.  Public health teams, working 
with a ‘Health in All Policies' approach across councils, are tackling persistent problems 
like adult and childhood obesity, mental illness, alcohol abuse, sexually transmitted 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



 

 

Community Wellbeing Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 
 

infections and the health impact of isolation and loneliness in old age, as well as 
addressing some of the serious health inequalities that still exist within and between 
communities. 

 

10. In October 2016, Public Health England undertook a review of the five mandated health 
visitor checks delivered by health visitors between birth and two and a half years to 
provide advice to the government on whether the mandation should continue following 
regulations expiring in March 2017. In anticipation of future changes to public health 
funding, the LGA (with other local sector partners including the Society Of Local Authority 
Chief Executives, the Association of Directors of Public Health and the Association of 
Directors of Children’s Services) argued that mandation should be considered alongside 
the work on business rates retention and the public health grant. 

 

11. In March 2017 the government confirmed that the five mandated health visitor checks 
would continue. The LGA publication Improving outcomes for children and families in the 
early years: a key role for health visiting services demonstrated through a series of local 
council case studies how councils have used the transfer of commissioning  
responsibilities for the 0-5 Healthy Child Programme, as an opportunity to translate 
PHE’s six early years high impact areas into local context, focussing commissioning on 
the particular health issues that are most relevant for the 0-5 population in their local 
communities. 

 

12. The continuing rise in drug-related deaths is a major concern to councils and our health 
partners. Latest figures that show the number of registered heroin deaths increased by 
26 per cent between 2014 and 2015 and are now the highest on record, Councils are 
committed to ensuring drug users get the right support and treatment. The LGA continues 
to explore the complex causes behind the rise in deaths and produce practical messages 
for key decision makers who can help prevent future drug related deaths. 

 
13. In February, the LGA published Public health working with the voluntary, community and 

social enterprise sector: new opportunities and sustainable change a set of case studies 
showing how public health and the voluntary, community and social enterprise sector are 
working together. The case studies show how public health and the voluntary, community 
and social enterprise sector (VCSE) are working together to make a real difference to 
people's health and wellbeing. 

 
14. Nearly 10 million people live in areas of England defined as rural. This number is 

increasing and the population is growing older. Their health is as important to us as the 
health of the 45 million who live in our cities and large conurbations. Although many rural 
areas are, in general, affluent, even wealthy in some cases, this is not true of all rural 
areas (the ‘north/south divide' can be seen in the countryside as well as in cities). And 
within even the most affluent areas, there can be real hardship, deprivation, ill health and 
inequalities. These are some of the issues the LGA discussed in our document Health 
and Wellbeing in Rural Areas, produced by the LGA in partnership with PHE. 

 
15. In October we published Health in all policies: a manual for local government. Health in 

All Policies (HiAP) is an approach to policies that systematically and explicitly takes into 
account the health implications of the decisions we make; targets the key social 

Page 20

Agenda Item 5



 

 

Community Wellbeing Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 
 

determinants of health; looks for synergies between health and other core objectives and 
the work we do with partners; and tries to avoid causing harm with the aim of improving 
the health of the population and reducing inequity. 

 
16. There is a growing body of research which shows how faith groups can have a positive 

impact on both the health of their members and wider communities. Faith groups make 
an important contribution to this work through their commitment to service, both with their 
own members and with wider communities. The role of faith groups was discussed in our 
document Working with faith groups to promote health and wellbeing, produced by the 
LGA in partnership with Faith Action. 

 
17. In December, the Healthy futures: supporting and promoting the health needs of looked 

after children publication highlighted that health (especially mental health) outcomes for 
looked after children are significantly worse than for the child population as a whole. The 
case studies highlighted both the council’s public health responsibilities but also their 
corporate parenting role in supporting vulnerable children and the need for closer working 
between children’s services, schools and public health colleagues.  

 
18. Our publication Working to support positive parenting and relationships. What can 

councils do? recognised councils renewed focus on initiatives to support parents, given 
the body of evidence which shows that the quality of parent-child relationships particularly 
in the early years, is a key influencer on the social determinants of health throughout the 
life course. 

 
19. In February, we published Suicide prevention: a guide for local authorities. On average in 

England 13 people take their own lives every day. This affects their families, their friends 
and people they work and live with. For every death, another six to 60 people are thought 
to be affected directly. Local government’s public health remit means we have 
responsibility for addressing many of the risk factors, such as alcohol and drug misuse, 
while our wider responsibilities for housing and local growth mean we can have an impact 
on the wider determinants. Councils have been active on suicide prevention work in 
recent years. Following the publication of the 2012 strategy, councils were given the 
responsibility of developing local suicide action plans through their work with health and 
wellbeing boards. By the end of the year, 95 per cent of areas had plans in places or 
were in the process of drawing them up. 

 
20. In November we published Helping people look after themselves: a guide on self-care. 

The case studies in our report demonstrate councils are involved in a range of innovative 
work to further embed the self-care agenda. 

 
Adult social care funding 
 
21. Securing additional funding to tackle the adult social care funding gap has remained a 

key focus of the LGA’s work over the last year. Through written and oral evidence to 
numerous parliamentary inquiries and debates, publications, comprehensive media work 
and other lobbying and influencing work, the LGA has been a leading voice in highlighting 
the social care crisis and the need for additional resources. As a result of this work, and 
the work of others in the sector, we have secured the following for adult social care: 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



 

 

Community Wellbeing Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 
 

21.1. Greater flexibility with the social care council tax precept (provisional local 
government finance settlement). 

 
21.2. The £241 million Adult Social Care Support Grant (provisional local government 

finance settlement). 
 

21.3. An additional £2 billion for adult social care through the improved Better Care Fund 
(2017 Spring Budget). 

                                                          
22. While these measures do not constitute full solutions for the short- or long-term, they are 

demonstrable measures of progress, particularly in the current financial context. The 
announcement of a green paper on social care in the 2017 Spring Budget, which the LGA 
had also called for, provides an important opportunity to build on this progress in seeking 
a lasting and sustainable solution for this vital service. 

 

The Better Care Fund  
 
23. We successfully argued for a reduction in the number of national conditions attached to 

the Better Care Fund (BCF) funding. The Department of Health and Department of 
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) 2017-19 Integration and the Better Care 
Fund Policy Framework reduced the number of national conditions.  For 2017-19, there 
are four national conditions, rather than the previous eight: 1. Plans to be jointly agreed; 
2. NHS contribution to adult social care is maintained in line with inflation; 3. Agreement 
to invest in NHS commissioned out-of-hospital services, which may include 7 day 
services and adult social care; and 4. Managing Transfers of Care - a new condition to 
ensure people’s care transfers smoothly between services and settings.  

 
24. We were successful in pressing for improved Better Care Fund resources to come 

directly to local government rather than being channelled through Clinical Commissioning 
Groups (CCGs). The iBCF can be used to meet adult social care needs, including 
backfilling planned reductions to services, reducing pressures on the NHS, including 
supporting more people to be discharged from hospital when they are ready and ensuring 
that the local social care provider market is supported.  

 

The future vision of health and social care systems 
 
25. Following the launch of our Stepping up to the place self-assessment framework, the 

Care and Health Improvement Programme piloted facilitated integration workshops in 12 
areas, throughout the summer and early autumn of 2016. After successful evaluation the 
piloted integration workshops are now a core part of our support offer on integration. 
These workshops enable local health and wellbeing system leaders to identify their 
ambitions, capacity, capability and commitment to make meaningful progress to 
achieving a fully integrated local health and care system. A further nine workshops have 
been completed and eight more are planned up to July 2017. The workshops have been 
warmly received by health and wellbeing boards, with participants saying: "Probably the 
best self-assessment/discussion I've been involved in." and "Exceeded my expectations 
in terms of generating conversations that we need to have." 

 

Page 22

Agenda Item 5



 

 

Community Wellbeing Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 
 

26. We have continued to promote a sector-led approach to integration in our discussions 
with Government and NHS England on improvement support for integration. For 
example, we have secured the commitment from the Department of Health and NHS 
England that the Stepping up to the place facilitated integration workshops will be a key 
part of the process for areas wishing to graduate from the Better Care Fund. 

 
27. We also worked with the Care and Health Improvement Programme (CHIP) and national 

health partners to develop a system-wide peer challenge to assess the extent to which all 
partners in a health and social care system are working effectively to improve the health 
and wellbeing of their populations. The CHIP team have conducted two successful pilots 
and after evaluation we are seeking to work with five other areas to pilot this innovative 
approach. 

 
Sustainability and Transformation Partnerships 

 
28. We have continued to press for councillors and Health and Wellbeing Boards to be fully 

engaged in the development and implementation of Sustainability and Transformation 
Plans. In September 2016 we produced a joint briefing for the party conference season with 
the NHS Confederation, NHS Clinical Commissioner and NHS Providers with the following 
messages:  
 

28.1. Sustainability and transformation plans (STPs) provide a key opportunity to bring 
together local partners to resolve deep-seated issues, but local solutions must be 
whole system and realistic to succeed. 
 

28.2. The funding pressures on each part of the system cannot be solved in isolation, 
so each STP must identify the totality of the health and adult social care finance 
and quality gap it faces. 

 
28.3. Ensuring ownership of local plans will require meaningful engagement with all 

stakeholders.  
 

28.4. Appropriate community engagement and consultation will be essential.  
 

28.5. A commitment to integration must be at the heart of the STP process.  
 

28.6. A focus on prevention remains important. 
 

28.7. Robust governance and clear lines of accountability is central to the successful 
implementation of STPs. 

 
29. We have recently conducted a survey of senior elected members’ views of STPs in 

response to widespread concerns from our member authorities that councillors and local 
communities are not being meaningfully engaged in the developed of plans.  A summary 
of the key findings will be launched at the LGA annual conference in July. 

 
Vulnerable People 
 
30. The priority areas for this work stream for 2016-17 included supported housing; the links 

between housing, homelessness, health and care; mental health and children’s mental 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



 

 

Community Wellbeing Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 
 

health; suicide prevention; carers; the armed forces; dementia; autism and learning 
disabilities and appropriate adults; as well as a continuing focus on older people, 
personalisation and end of life care.  

 
31. Influencing the development of the Government’s policy on supported housing was a key 

area of work for the year; after the announcement that Government intended to introduce 
the Local Housing Allowance (LHA) cap on supported housing and give councils a ‘local 
top up fund’ to resource the additional cost above the cap. The LGA’s main concern has 
been the impact on the most vulnerable in our communities: older people, homeless, 
those fleeing domestic violence, those with mental health issues, veterans, etc; as well as 
the financial basis and sustainability of the top-up fund and other proposed interventions. 
Several local government and parliamentary briefings were produced, we wrote to all 
relevant ministers and secretaries of state, held round table discussions, and met with 
stakeholders, officials and ministers. We held a successful engagement event with over 
60 councils. The LGA response to the consultation was cross-cutting, detailed and well-
received. The LGA sat on three of the four DCLG/Department of Work and Pensions task 
and finish groups, and Community Wellbeing Board Chair, Cllr Seccombe, chaired one of 
them.  

 
32. The LGA Housing Commission report was launched in January, setting out a vision and 

associated recommendations for the future of housing for older people. This will be 
complemented by a case study report on good practice that will be launched over the 
summer. 

 
33. Mental health has been a high profile issue for the year, with the focus being on 

increasing awareness of the key role of local government in both mental wellbeing and in 
direct mental health support. The LGA report on mental health, ‘Being mindful of mental 
health – the role of local government in mental health and wellbeing’ will be launched at 
annual conference, and sets how councils influence the mental wellbeing of our 
communities and how council services, from social care to parks to open spaces to 
education to housing, help to make up the fabric of mental health support for the people 
in our communities. The LGA has also been influencing the development of the PHE 
Mental Wellbeing Concordat, also due for publication in July, alongside a consensus 
statement on the importance of prevention in mental health. 

 
34. Children and young people’s mental health and wellbeing has been high on the national 

agenda this year, with an increasing focus from the government and a range of 
stakeholders on the quality of mental health services. This is against a backdrop of 
increasing demand for services, workforce difficulties and a recognition that mental health 
is not being given equal priority to physical health.  

 
35. In February 2017 lead members of the Community Wellbeing Board and Children and 

Young People Board hosted a special meeting on children and young people mental 
health and wellbeing, inviting a range of different stakeholder representatives to form a 
rounded understand of the issues and determine future work priorities. The need for 
greater local accountability on spend and quality of services and building the capacity 
and capability of the providers in the system emerged as two key themes which will be 
taken forward over the coming months.   

 

Page 24

Agenda Item 5



 

 

Community Wellbeing Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 
 

36. Alongside mental health, suicide prevention has increased in prominence. The LGA has 
a seat on the National Suicide Prevention Advisory Group and has been influencing the 
Government’s response to the APPG report on suicide prevention. As such, we expect 
the development of a sector-led self-assessment on suicide prevention strategies to be 
made available to councils, rather than the establishment a national quality monitoring 
regime.  

 
37. We have continued to influence the development of the Government’s Carers Strategy, 

sitting on the Carers Strategy Steering Group, looking to focus on Carer Friendly 
Communities and viable solutions to support carers. However, Government postponed 
the released of the strategy, and we are waiting to find out if it will be part of the 
anticipated Green Paper on adult social care and an ageing population.  

 
38. The LGA published its joint report with Forces in Mind Trust on the armed forces 

covenant: ‘Our community, our covenant’, setting out the main challenges and 
opportunities for local government in supporting the country’s armed forces community. It 
has been extremely well received by councils, MPs and members of the House of Lords. 
An updated version with more case studies will be launched at annual conference. As a 
result, the LGA has agreed a joint action plan with the Ministry of Defence (MOD) and 
DCLG on the next steps, which will include new online resources for councils. The LGA 
has also been influencing the Office of National Statistics to include a question on 
veterans in the next census. Finally, the LGA has been involved in national discussions 
on rebasing and the release of MOD land as part of the one public estate programme, 
and held a very successful event with councils and the MOD in May.  

 
39. Dementia continues to be a high profile issue, as we expect to see the number of 

diagnosis and support costs to increase in future years. The LGA sits on the boards of 
the Prime Ministers Challenge on Dementia 2020, including the Programme Board, the 
Citizen’s Engagement Group and the Meaningful Care Delivery Group. We contributed to 
shaping the toolkit on citizen’s engagement and the national survey on the Prime 
Ministers Challenge. We are influencing the work stream looking at social care and 
dementia, and have been influencing the development of performance indicators for 
CCGs. The LGA is working with the national Dementia Action Alliance to produce a case 
study guide for councils on post diagnosis support for people with dementia.  

 
40. There has been increased work with the Home Office on the provision of Appropriate 

Adults for vulnerable adults in custody and the development of a missing people’s 
strategy.  

 
41. We have taken part in and hosted a number of events, including an event on Autism in 

November. At NCAS we had sessions on ‘caring for and housing an ageing population’, 
supported housing, and mental health, and the ‘Think Local Act Personal’ shared 
commitment on ‘Engaging and empowering communities’, which the LGA is a signatory 
to, was launched.  

 
42. With Brexit being an important issue nationally, we also submitted evidence to the Health 

Select Committee inquiry into Brexit and health and social care. 
 
 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



 

 

Community Wellbeing Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 
 

CWB Events and Publications 
 

43. The statistics below give an indication of the reach of the Board’s activities in the media, 
with member authorities and with other key stakeholders:  
 
43.1. Twitter Followers: @LGAcomms 18,952 followers, @LGAwellbeing 4,404 followers 

 
43.2. Number of events held: 5 
 

43.3. Attendees at National Children and Adult Services Conference: 905 
 

43.4. Number of publications: 36 
 

43.5. Number of downloads from the LGA website: 41,397 
 

43.6. There were 528 national newspaper, online and broadcast CWB mentions during 
the period September 2016-June 7 2017. 

 
43.7. CWB Board Chair Cllr Izzi Seccombe was interviewed or mentioned in national 

print, online and broadcast media 237 times during this period. 
 

43.8. CWB Board members Cllrs Linda Thomas, Jonathan McShane and Richard Kemp 
were also mentioned 14 times collectively in national print, online and broadcast 
media. 

 
44. Highlights of the media coverage included:  

 
44.1. CWB member Cllr Jonathan McShane was interviewed live on Good Morning 

Britain about the LGA’s press release calling on GPs to prescribe exercise 
outdoors to patients, in a bid to get people doing more physical activity. CWB 
Chairman Cllr Izzi Seccombe was also interviewed on BBC Radio 5 Live and 
across BBC local radio stations and the LGA’s lines reported on BBC Radio 2 
and LBC news bulletins. LGA Deputy Chairman Cllr Peter Fleming was also 
interviewed on BBC Breakfast  with coverage also in the Sun, Mirror, Mail Online 
(twice), Express Online and BBC Online. (6-7 September) 

 
44.2. Cllr Izzi Seccombe featured on the front page of the Sunday Express with the 

LGA’s call for pharmacies to play a bigger role in providing public health services. 
(16 October) 

 
44.3. LGA Senior Vice Chair Cllr Nick Forbes was interviewed on BBC Radio 5 Live 

about the LGA’s press release warning that social care services that support 
elderly and disabled people are facing “an existential crisis” despite being as 
important to national wellbeing as the NHS. This was also reported on Mail Online, 
Guardian Online and Express Online. (2 November) 

 
44.4. Cllr Izzi Seccombe was interviewed by Sky News Radio and Cllr Jonathan 

McShane also appeared on BBC Breakfast and BBC Radio 5 Live about the 
LGA’s press release, warning that millions of GP visits are unnecessary and are 
for minor ailments where patients could instead be helped to treat themselves. 

Page 26

Agenda Item 5

https://www.thesun.co.uk/living/1735743/gps-should-prescribe-exercise-to-fat-patients-to-stem-obesity-epidemic
http://www.mirror.co.uk/news/uk-news/obese-patients-should-prescribed-outdoor-8775416#ICID=nsm
http://www.dailymail.co.uk/wires/pa/article-3775199/Prescribe-exercise-beat-obesity-doctors-urged.html
http://www.dailymail.co.uk/health/article-3777429/Why-GARDENING-best-medicine-Prescribing-outdoor-activities-ease-obesity-crisis.html
http://www.express.co.uk/life-style/health/707450/GPs-prescribe-exercise-pills-health-campaigners
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/health-37274562
http://www.express.co.uk/news/uk/721625/Late-night-chemist-funding-cuts-thousands-pharmacies-close
http://www.dailymail.co.uk/wires/pa/article-3895714/Council-leaders-call-investment-social-care-sector-faces-crisis.html
https://www.theguardian.com/society/2016/nov/02/social-care-services-facing-existential-crisis-say-council-leaders
http://www.express.co.uk/news/uk/727662/Care-pensioners-elderly-poor-half-Brits
https://www.local.gov.uk/about/news/millions-unnecessary-gp-visits-are-coughs-and-colds


 

 

Community Wellbeing Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 
 

This was also reported across BBC News and on BBC Radio 2, BBC Radio 4’s 
Today programme, BBC Radio 5 Live, LBC, TalkSport, Sky News and ITV 
News bulletins. The LGA’s release also featured on BBC Online, Mail Online, 
Times Online, Independent Online and in the Guardian, Sun and Sunday 
Telegraph. (November 5) 

 
44.5. The LGA’s response to the Court of Appeal ruling that NHS England has the power 

to commission PrEP was reported in the Mail and on BBC Online, Sky News 
Online, Mail Online, i paper online, Express Online, Sun Online and Metro Online 
and also on BBC Radio 5 Live news bulletins. (10-11 November) 

 
44.6. Cllr Izzi Seccombe was interviewed prior to and following the Autumn Statement 

announcement on social care funding on BBC News, BBC Radio 4’s World at 
One and PM programmes and on BBC Radio 5 Live. Cllr Seccombe also featured 
in the FT, Guardian and on Independent Online. (24-25 November) 

 
44.7. Cllr Seccombe was interviewed on BBC Radio 4’s Today programme, BBC 

News channel, BBC Radio 5 Live and LBC with the LGA’s warnings that 
increasing the social care precept on council tax will not be enough to fill the adult 
social care funding gap. Cllr Seccombe also appeared across BBC News bulletins 
including on the BBC One O’Clock News. The LGA’s lines were also reported in 
the Observer and Sunday Express as well as on BBC Online,  ITV Online, 
Telegraph Online, Guardian Online (twice), Mail Online, Mail Online and Mail 
Online (three separate stories), Mirror Online and Sun Online. (11-12 December) 

 
44.8. LGA Deputy Chairman Cllr Peter Fleming featured on Good Morning Britain and 

Channel 5 News about the LGA’s press release on how more than 40,000 
children and young people a year are having teeth removed in hospital, mainly 
because of decay. This also featured on Sky News, BBC Radio 5 Live and LBC. 
CWB Vice Chair Cllr Richard Kemp was also interviewed live across BBC local 
radio stations and LGA Vice Chair Cllr Marianne Overton featured on Talk Radio. 
The Guardian, Guardian Online, Telegraph, Times, i paper, Sun, Mirror, Express, 
Mail, Mail Online, ITV Online and Good Morning Britain Online (twice) also 
reported the LGA’s lines. (11-12 January) 

 
44.9. Community Wellbeing Board Chairman Cllr Izzi Seccombe took part in a BBC 

Radio 5 Live discussion on the social care crisis, and also featured on BBC Radio 
4’s File on Four programme about the financial pressures on councils to fund 
social care and the impact on the care provider market. Cllr Seccombe also took 
part in a live debate on the issue on LBC. (5-6 March) 

 
44.10. Chairman Lord Porter was interviewed live on the BBC News channel and also 

appeared on Sky News with the LGA’s response to the Spring Budget 
announcement on social care. Community Wellbeing Board Chairman Cllr Izzi 
Seccombe was also interviewed on BBC Radio 5 Live on the morning of the 
Budget and on BBC Radio 4’s The World Tonight programme later the same day. 
The LGA’s Budget submission lines prior to the announcement also ran on BBC 
Online and across Sky News, ITV News, BBC Radio 2, BBC Radio 4 and BBC 
Radio 5 Live news bulletins. Following the Budget announcement, the LGA’s 
response was reported in the Telegraph, Express, Metro and BBC Online as well 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5

http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/health-37871180
http://www.dailymail.co.uk/wires/pa/article-3908054/Patients-educated-treat-minor-ailments.html
http://www.thetimes.co.uk/article/patients-asked-to-consider-self-care-instead-of-seeing-a-gp-p0hlsbttz
http://www.independent.co.uk/news/uk/home-news/nhs-local-government-association-lga-gps-minor-illnesses-patients-strain-a7399216.html
https://www.theguardian.com/society/2016/nov/05/millions-of-patients-putting-strain-on-nhs-with-minor-ailments
https://www.local.gov.uk/about/news/councils-respond-appeal-court-judgement-hiv-prevention-drug
http://www.dailymail.co.uk/news/article-3925792/The-13-NHS-treatments-risk-controversial-HIV-drug-PrEP.html
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/health-37935788
http://news.sky.com/story/nhs-england-must-pay-for-game-changer-hiv-treatment-prep-10651974#provider_moreover
http://news.sky.com/story/nhs-england-must-pay-for-game-changer-hiv-treatment-prep-10651974#provider_moreover
http://www.dailymail.co.uk/wires/pa/article-3922822/Appeal-Court-decision-pays-bill-service-block-HIV-infection.html
https://inews.co.uk/essentials/news/health/high-court-prep-appeal-ruling-nhs-england/
http://www.express.co.uk/news/uk/730764/Appeal-court-decision-over-bill-service-block-HIV-infection
https://www.thesun.co.uk/living/2156796/appeal-court-rules-nhs-england-is-responsible-for-providing-game-changing-hiv-drugs/
http://metro.co.uk/2016/11/10/nhs-loses-high-court-battle-over-prep-in-fight-against-hivaids-6248488/
https://www.ft.com/content/4153a008-b24b-11e6-a37c-f4a01f1b0fa1
https://www.theguardian.com/uk-news/2016/nov/23/labour-pours-scorn-over-autumn-statement-for-ignoring-sick-and-old
http://www.independent.co.uk/news/uk/politics/chancellors-failure-to-fund-social-care-will-have-human-cost-says-leader-of-tory-council-a7436006.html
https://www.theguardian.com/society/2016/dec/10/tory-plans-making-social-care-worse
http://www.express.co.uk/news/uk/742115/Millions-face-100-pound-council-tax-raise-Government-fix-social-care
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-38286145
http://www.itv.com/news/2016-12-12/council-tax-rates-could-be-raised-to-fund-tipping-point-social-care/
http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/2016/12/12/theresa-may-considers-raising-council-tax-tackle-social-care/
https://www.theguardian.com/money/2016/dec/12/council-tax-hike-being-considered-to-cover-social-care-costs
https://www.theguardian.com/politics/blog/live/2016/dec/12/philip-hammond-treasury-social-care-considering-lettting-councils-raise-council-tax-to-fund-social-care-politics-live#provider_moreover
http://www.dailymail.co.uk/news/article-4024250/Theresa-considering-council-tax-hikes-government-struggles-escalating-social-care-crisis.html
http://www.dailymail.co.uk/wires/pa/article-4023460/Raising-council-tax-cover-social-care-costs-worsen-postcode-lottery.html
http://www.dailymail.co.uk/wires/pa/article-4025306/Q-A-How-council-tax-rise-shortfall-social-care-budget.html?ITO=1490&ns_mchannel=rss&ns_campaign=1490
http://www.dailymail.co.uk/wires/pa/article-4025306/Q-A-How-council-tax-rise-shortfall-social-care-budget.html?ITO=1490&ns_mchannel=rss&ns_campaign=1490
http://www.mirror.co.uk/news/uk-news/calls-immediate-13-billion-cash-9442090
https://www.thesun.co.uk/news/2380120/government-blames-councils-for-poorly-managing-social-care-crisis-as-families-could-be-hit-for-100-in-new-year-council-tax-hike-to-fill-black-hole/
https://www.local.gov.uk/about/news/more-160-operations-day-remove-rotting-teeth-children
https://www.theguardian.com/society/2017/jan/11/40000-children-rotten-teeth-taken-out-hospital-each-year
https://www.theguardian.com/commentisfree/2017/jan/12/nhs-dental-service-payment-system-tooth-extractions-children
http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/2017/01/11/sugary-food-blamed-160-children-have-teeth-pulled-every-day/
http://www.thetimes.co.uk/article/child-tooth-decay-hits-record-high-mbccdlvgr
https://www.thesun.co.uk/living/2584478/experts-blame-sugar-and-poor-oral-hygiene-after-40000-kids-had-teeth-removed-last-year/
http://www.mirror.co.uk/news/uk-news/record-40000-children-rotting-teeth-9600322
http://www.express.co.uk/life-style/health/752446/kids-tooth-sugar-health-children-operation
http://www.dailymail.co.uk/health/article-4107856/Nearly-41-000-kids-rotten-teeth-taken-hospital-Number-11-four-years-experts-blame-high-sugar-diets.html
http://www.dailymail.co.uk/wires/pa/article-4108692/Sugary-food-blamed-160-children-teeth-pulled-day.html
http://www.itv.com/news/2017-01-11/more-than-160-operations-to-remove-multiple-teeth-from-children-carried-out-every-day/
http://www.itv.com/goodmorningbritain/news/children-and-teens-having-160-operations-a-because-of-rotting-teeth
http://www.itv.com/goodmorningbritain/news/britains-rotting-teeth
http://www.bbc.co.uk/programmes/b08gwfrg#play
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-politics-39209738


 

 

Community Wellbeing Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 
 

as being mentioned on the BBC Daily Politics programme and on LBC, BBC 
Radio 2, BBC Radio 4 and BBC Radio 5 Live news bulletins. (8-9 March). 

 
CWB in Parliament 
 
45. Senior LGA members have engaged ministers and parliamentarians to promote our 

policy priorities. Below is a summary of our parliamentary activity in 2016/17: 
 

45.1. In a statement to the House of Commons in December 2016, Defence Secretary, 
Michael Fallon MP, presented the Government’s armed forces covenant annual 
report. He praised the LGA’s covenant toolkit for councils, compiled jointly with the 
Forces in Mind Trust.  

 
45.2. Our toolkit received further praise by the Defence Committee in its 2017 report on 

the armed forces covenant, in which the Committee stated that the publication 
includes “some examples of outstanding action at the local level”. 

 
45.3. During Prime Minister’s Questions in February 2017, Jeremy Corbyn MP, 

referenced an LGA media release in which our Chairman warned that rises in 
council tax permitted through use of the social care precept would be insufficient to 
adequately fund social care. 

 
45.4. In March 2017, our Chairman spoke during the debate on the Chancellor’s Budget 

statement. Lord Porter raised concerns the Budget did not include greater 
measures to facilitate local authority housebuilding, but acknowledged the 
announcement of £2 billion to alleviate the immediate pressures on social care.  

 
45.5. While debating budgets for social care in Liverpool in March 2017, Labour’s Steve 

Rotheram told MPs that he could not agree more with Lord Porter’s assessment of 
social care services across local government. He said his Party was fully in 
agreement that services for the most vulnerable in our communities were at 
breaking point.  

 
Committee inquiries 
 
46. In 2016/17, we gave evidence to more than 40 parliamentary inquiries, encompassing a 

range of issues. Each separate inquiry covered policy areas of relevance to local 
government, and presented an opportunity to put forward councils’ concerns and 
interests to parliamentarians. Our evidence to inquiries often forms part of the key 
recommendations to Government contained in the final committee reports. Key highlights 
include: 

 
46.1. Our lobbying for the Government to urgently invest more money in social care 

throughout the year was reflected when the Prime Minister, Theresa May MP, 

appeared before the House of Commons Liaison Committee in December 2016. 

Particular highlights of the session included questioning on adult social care 

funding, and the LGA’s key concerns were repeatedly raised by the Committee.  

 
46.2. Both the LGA’s Chief Executive, Mark Lloyd, and Deputy Chief Executive, Sarah 

Pickup, raised councils’ serious concerns over their ability to fund social care when 

Page 28

Agenda Item 5



 

 

Community Wellbeing Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 
 

they gave evidence to the Communities and Local Government Committee’s 

inquiry into social care. Following publication of the inquiry report in March 2017, 

the Committee recommended an increase in immediate funding from the 

Government, and an urgent review into the long-term funding of the sector. MPs 

also called on the Government to work with the LGA.  

 
46.3. Alongside our calls for extra funding to plug the gap in social care, we argued that 

councils should be able to allocate additional revenue raised from the transition to 

100 per cent business rates retention to fund immediate shortfalls in social care. 

The Communities and Local Government Committee backed our call in its March 

2017 report on social care.  

 
46.4. Cllr Izzi Seccombe, Chairman of our Community Wellbeing Board, appeared 

before the Women and Equalities Committee. Cllr Seccombe reiterated the LGA’s 

concerns about a lack of capacity in local government planning departments. The 

Committee shared our concerns in its report, and recommended that the 

Government work with councils on providing the specialist expertise necessary for 

the creation of an accessible and inclusive built environment.  

 
46.5. As part of the Health Committee’s inquiry into suicide prevention, Cllr Richard 

Kemp, Lead Member of our Community Wellbeing Board, gave evidence on behalf 

of the LGA in January 2017. The Committee’s report emphasised the need for 

greater clarity over funding arrangements for mental health services, which we 

have been consistently calling for.  

 
46.6. The LGA also gave written evidence to the Health Committee’s inquiry in Brexit 

and Health and Social Care. In the submission, we reiterated the LGA’s five 

priorities for Brexit: local government’s position post-Brexit, EU funding, developing 

a new legal base for local government, community cohesion and place-based 

impact.  

 
46.7. Cllr Izzi Seccombe gave oral evidence to the British-Irish Parliamentary Assembly 

Committee on the importance of taking action to combat childhood obesity. The 

report publication was delayed due to the announcement of the General Election.  

 
46.8. Prior to the General Election being called, the Health Committee announced they 

intended to hold an inquiry into Sustainability and Transformation Plans. This was 

in response to the NHS England’s Five Year Forward View Delivery Plan being 

published. Although the inquiry has been suspended due to the General Election – 

we will call for the Health Committee to consider holding an inquiry into STPs in 

the new parliamentary session.  

 
46.9. In June 2017, Cllr Linda Thomas spoke at the NHS Confederation Conference on 

the importance of health and devolution.  

 
 
 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 5

http://data.parliament.uk/writtenevidence/committeeevidence.svc/evidencedocument/health-committee/brexit-and-health-and-social-care/written/42274.html


 

 

Community Wellbeing Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 
 

Financial Implications 

47. None.   

Page 30

Agenda Item 5



 

 

Community Wellbeing Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

     

Update on Other Board Business  

Purpose of report 
  
For information and comment. 
 
Summary 
 
Members to note the following updates: 
 

 Mental health report. 

 Roundtable – Centre of Mental Health. 
 

 
Recommendations 
 
Members of the Community Wellbeing Board are asked to:  
 

1. Provide oral updates on any other outside bodies / external meetings they may 
have attended on behalf of the Community Wellbeing Board since the last meeting; 
and 

 
2.  Note the updates contained in the report. 

 
Action 
 
As directed by members. 
 

 
 
 

Contact officer:  Mark Norris 

Position: Principle Policy Adviser 

Phone no: 020 7664 3241 

Email: mark.norris@local.gov.uk  

  

Page 31

Agenda Item 6

mailto:mark.norris@local.gov.uk


 

 

Community Wellbeing Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

     

Update on Other Board Business  
 
 
Mental health report 
 

1. The mental health report that members discussed at the meeting on 16 February has 
been drafted and is currently being designed. The report has been entitled ‘Being mindful 
of mental health – the role of local government in mental health and wellbeing’. The 
report sets how councils influence the mental wellbeing of our communities and how 
council services, from social care to parks to open spaces to education to housing, help 
to make up the fabric of mental health support for the people in our communities. Many of 
our partner organisations have kindly contributed their view of the role of local 
government in mental health, including the Centre for Mental Health, the Alzheimer’s 
Society, Sport England, the Woodland Trust, etc. It will be launched at the LGA annual 
conference in July. 
 

Roundtable – Centre of Mental Health 
 

2. On 5 May Cllr Doreen Huddart participated in a national roundtable meeting, arranged by 
the Centre of Mental Health. Other participants included leaders of organisations 
representing service users, carers, professionals, employers and other stakeholders. The 
focus of the discussion was about the future workforce in four domains: Capacity meeting 
growing demand with limited (maybe shrinking) resources, Culture (changing aspirations 
and attitudes), Skills to work in different ways and Knowledge of new and emerging 
approaches.  

 

Page 32

Agenda Item 6



 
 

 

Community Wellbeing 
Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 
 

 

Note of last Community Wellbeing Board meeting 
 

Title: 
 

Community Wellbeing Board 

Date: 
 

Thursday 27 April 2017 

Venue: Room D&E, Ground Floor, Layden House, 76-86 Turnmill Street, 
London, EC1M 5LG 

  

 
Attendance 
An attendance list is attached as Appendix A to this note 

 
 

Item Decisions and actions  
 

1   Apologies and Declarations of Interest 
  

 

 The Board noted Cllr Liz Mallinson, Cllr Lynn Travis, Cllr Jackie Meldrum’s and Cllr 
Carole Burdis’ apologies. 
 
Cllr Robin Moss declared an interest in item 4 as he runs a service for young people.  
 

 

2   Presentation from Duncan Selbie, Chief Executive of Public Health England 
  

 

 The Chairman introduced Duncan Selbie, Chief Executive of Public Health England, 
who had been invited to attend the Board to discuss Public Health England and its 
work with Local Government. 
 
Duncan expressed that he would like to pursue greater visibility in the work of local 
authorities in improving public health. He also emphasised Public Health England’s 
goal was not only to improve length of life, but the length of life in good health.  
 
He highlighted the challenges faced by Public Health England and local government 
in improving public health; in particular that their two biggest restraints in improving 
public health is obesity and tobacco, one in four hospital beds are occupied by a 
smoker and there hasn’t been enough interest in hospitals becoming smoke free. 
Further to this he emphasised that addressing these issues was not a political issue, 
but an economic one. He also highlighted the importance of employment for good 
health; which has been evidenced and that getting people back into work will be a 
priority going forward. Creating jobs people can get and access from where they live 
will be beneficial for public health. He also emphasised the importance of a decent 
place to live, friendship and affection in an individual’s health. 
 
Duncan stated that it was their duty to improve the public health of the people as 
direct health care could only provide a small fraction of these things. 
 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



 

 

Community Wellbeing 
Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 

Further to this Duncan gave praise to the role of local government in public health. 
He stated that local authorities have applied both rigour and discipline, as well as 
having made savings and improved outcomes. He also highlighted that sector led 
improvement would remain critical. Duncan expressed his pride in local government 
and that he looked forward to continuing to work with the Local Government 
Association to demonstrate the impact councils had on health. 
 
In the discussion with Duncan which followed Members raised the following points: 
 

 A Member asked what could be done to improve joint work regarding 
Sustainability and Transformation Plans (STPs). 

 A concern was raised regarding the public health funding formula. A Member 
asked how Duncan would ensure there will not be errors in how the funding 
is divided between local authorities. 

 A Member asked how we can demonstrate the value of parks and pools in 
decreasing obesity, in particular in areas of deprivation. 

 In response to the question on STPs Duncan explained that more leadership 
from local authorities would be critical in joint work going forward as only 
local authorities have the necessary focus on place. 

 In response to the concern raised on the public health funding formula 
Duncan explained that he would not forget the previous error in the funding 
formula and that establishing the new formula would be a very thoughtful 
process. 

 It was highlighted regarding the value of parks and pools that showing 
connection to outcome would be important in demonstrating their importance 
to central government.  

 A Member asked what Councils can do to address inequalities in health 
between localities. 

 A concern was raised that in Public Health England’s last five year forward 
view there was not enough reference to the contribution of local government 
in prevention. 

 A concern was raised over the danger of new drugs on public health. 

 Regarding inequalities in health between localities Duncan emphasised the 
importance of the impact of tobacco, diet and exercise on the public as well 
as in recognising areas of deprivation. He explained that local authorities will 
need to focus on working together to counter these issues across 
boundaries. 

 Duncan emphasised the importance of economics in improving public health, 
in particular in ensuring more jobs are created for local people. Increasing 
prosperity and ensuring people can get back into work will play a big role in 
improving public health in future.  

 Duncan also emphasised that recovery rates have only ever improved since 
local authorities had taken on public health responsibilities.  

 Regarding legal highs Duncan gave reassurance that central government are 
wary that this issue needs to be addressed and that the main focus for the 
time being would be ensuring the public have the support required. 

 
Decision 
 
The Board noted the presentation. 
 

Page 34

Agenda Item 7



 

 

Community Wellbeing 
Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

3   Presentation from Richard Humphries, Senior Fellow at the King's Fund 
  

 

 The Chairman welcomed and introduced Richard Humphries, Senior Fellow of the 
King’s Fund, to give a presentation on the current issues facing care and health, how 
they might be impacted by the forthcoming General Election, and what opportunities 
and risks this period presents for the sector. The Chairman also expressed the 
gratitude of the Board to Richard for having agreed to give his presentation at such 
short notice. 
 
Richard gave an overview of the King’s Fund and the key challenges to adult social 
care in coming years. In particular he identified funding, and workforce pressures, 
and the need for service transformation and better public awareness and 
engagement on social care. Regarding workforce issues he highlighted a concern 
that, for the most part, working in adult social care is not seen as high status work. 
He also emphasised the importance of making the best use of technology and 
developing the right kind of integrated care.  
 
As a part of his presentation he detailed the previous efforts over the last two 
decades of governments to tackle the question of adult social care sustainability for 
the long-term. He also raised the options for sustainable funding, breaking these 
down broadly to ‘public’ (taxation and/or redirection of existing spending on older 
and disable people) and ‘private’ (charges, insurance, means testing and equity 
release). Richard emphasised that there are no examples abroad where social care 
has relied on one sole source of funding. He explained that public opinion is very 
divided on how social care should be paid for. 
 
Richard highlighted opportunities for future work on the adult social care agenda 
including; the potential for social care to be a key campaign issue, to promote public 
awareness on social care and to explore different funding options. He emphasised 
the importance of maintaining momentum on the agenda as there will likely be 
strong media interest given political parties’ different approaches to adult social care.  
 
Richard also highlighted risks to the adult social care agenda, in particular; he raised 
a concern that the political focus on Brexit could force out key domestic issues, the 
momentum behind reform and the green paper could slow, and heightened political 
fault lines post-Election could damage cross-party consensus for change.  
 
Richard explained to the Board that the fundamental challenges facing adult social 
care will not have changed following the general election. He identified post-election 
issues in the effect on key policies and of NHS pressures, STPs and the emergence 
of accountable care systems on the future of adult social care. He also expressed 
concern as to the uncertainty around the implications of Brexit on the social care 
workforce, effect on economy and public finances as well as in distracting from 
domestic issues.  
 
In the discussion which followed Members raised the following points; 
 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



 

 

Community Wellbeing 
Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 

         A Member raised a query as to what the role of local authorities in STPs 
would be going forward. 

         A concern was also raised regarding the challenge faced by local authorities 
in creating a sustainable workforce and sustainable social care.  

         A view was expressed that local authorities required greater flexibility to try 
something different to meet these challenges, and raised whether devolution 
would assist. 

         A Member raised a query as to the correct balance on how the additional 
money for adult social care should be spent. 

         Richard explained that local government needs to be centrally involved in 
STPs, and that the Scottish example of the changes they have made without 
looking to taxation to fund social care.  

         Richard also stated that evidence is suggesting a reduced use of residential 
care is worth looking into. 

         Regarding the £2 billion in additional funding Richard advised that local 
judgement should be paramount in influencing how this is spent. 

         A concern was raised about NHSE’s willingness to engage with local 
government. 

         Richard expressed a view that NHSE should want to work far closer with 
local government to reduce the need for social care. 

         Regarding a concern raised as to how local authorities can change the 
culture around adult social care Richard explained that there are deeply 
entrenched cultural ideas and that we should expect it to be a difficult 
challenge to change this. 

 
Decision 
 
The Board noted the presentation. 
 

4   Update on lead members' special meeting on children and young people's 
mental health and wellbeing 
  

 

 Deepa Patel, Adviser, introduced the report updating the Board on the lead 
members' special meeting on children and young people's mental health and 
wellbeing and seeking the Boards views on resulting actions and next steps. She 
informed the Board that, based on the issues identified by lead members at the 
special meeting, suggested actions had been detailed in the report. Deepa advised 
that this update had also been reported to the Children and Young Peoples Board 
meeting on 23 March 2017. Members were asked whether they would like to 
suggest any additional actions or identify if any should be prioritised.  
 
Lead members expressed a view that the lead members’ special meeting on 
children and young people’s mental health and wellbeing had been very useful piece 
of work. 
 
In the discussion that followed, the Board raised the following points: 
 

 Members emphasised the key role of schools in identifying and responding to 
children and young people’s mental health and wellbeing, but also noted 
those not attending school needed to be considered. 

 

Page 36

Agenda Item 7



 

 

Community Wellbeing 
Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 

 A view was expressed that the LGA should seek clarity as to how the future 
Government intends to improve the transition from Children’s and Young 
People’s Services to Adult Services. 

 A concern was raised that in a Members constituency many of the teenagers 
who have committed suicide were home educated and as a consequence 
could not be referred to children and adult mental health services by a 
teacher. 

 A Member suggested that it would be useful to share this work with the Royal 
College of Nursing going forward. 

 Members emphasised that a greater focus on supporting families and 
parents would be beneficial going forward.  

 A Member expressed we needed to continue to be mindful of the impact of 
Cyber Bullying on the mental health of young people.  
 

The Chairman explained that in her own local authority they were pursuing 
commissioning services with their local partners with the aim to redesign their 
children and adolescent mental health service. She expressed a concern that they 
had found the market to not be responding to this need and that they were limited in 
the amount of providers available.   
 
Decision 
 
The Board noted the report and provided their views on the suggested actions. 
 
Action 
 
Officers to incorporate the Boards views in forthcoming work as detailed in the 
report, with priority given to the suggested round table discussion. 
 

5   The Future of Local Commissioning project with NHS Confed and NHSCC 
  

 

 Alyson Morley, Senior Adviser, introduced the report outlining to the Board proposals 
for a joint initiative with NHS Confederation, NHS Clinical Commissioners (NHSCC) 
and other key partners to influence the policy agenda on the future of local 
commissioning. She explained to Members that as a result of the recent 
announcement of the June 2017 general election the outlined proposals in section 7 
of the report would all change and the timelines indicated would no longer be 
achievable. Alyson emphasised that despite this it would be valuable to discuss how 
the Board would like to approach the purpose, process and governance 
arrangements for future joint work on the Future of Local Commissioning. Alyson 
explained that it would be important to emphasise the value of a place based 
approach, to stress the importance of local accountability and ensuring the new 
government would receive our key asks as early as possible. 
 
In the discussion which followed Members raised the following points; 
 

 A view was expressed that we need to concentrate on outcomes and 
responsibility. 

 A view was expressed that we need to ensure our vision for health and social 
care is a medium to long term one. 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



 

 

Community Wellbeing 
Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 

 A member raised the importance of local government being at the table to 
discuss the future of health devolution. 

 Concerns were raised that further integration could be difficult to achieve. 

 The Chairman expressed a view that local Health and Wellbeing Boards 
should not have been excluded from the STP process. 

 A concern was raised that the NHS was remaining cautious in how they work 
in partnership with local government.  

 Members emphasised that the LGA should not be holding back and should 
drive forward with our key asks to the new government quickly.  

 
Decision 

 
The Board noted and provided comments on the report. 
 
Action 
 
Officers to incorporate the Boards views in approaching the purpose, process and 
governance arrangements for future joint work on the Future of Local 
Commissioning. 

 
  
 

6   Update on Other Board Business 
  

 

 Mark Norris, Principal Policy Adviser, introduced the report, which presented 

updates on various areas of the Board’s work which were not included as part of 

other items on the agenda. 

 

Decision 

 

The Board noted the updates contained in the report. 
 

 

7   Minutes of the last meeting 
  

 

 The Board agreed the minutes of the previous meeting held on 16 February 2017. 
 

 

 
Appendix A -Attendance  

 
Position/Role Councillor Authority 
   
Chairman Cllr Izzi Seccombe Warwickshire County Council 
Vice-Chairman Cllr Linda Thomas Bolton Council 
Deputy-chairman Mayor Kate Allsop Mansfield District Council 
 Cllr Richard Kemp CBE Liverpool City Council 

 
Members Cllr David Coppinger Windsor & Maidenhead Royal Borough 

Page 38

Agenda Item 7



 

 

Community Wellbeing 
Board 

19 June 2017 

 

 

 

 Cllr Graham Gibbens Kent County Council 
 Cllr Keith Glazier East Sussex County Council 
 Cllr Vic Pritchard Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 Cllr Ernest White Leicestershire County Council 
 Cllr Jonathan McShane Hackney London Borough Council 
 Cllr Phil Bale Cardiff Council 
 Cllr Rachel Eden Reading Borough Council 
 Cllr Robin Moss Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 Cllr Doreen Huddart Newcastle upon Tyne City Council 

 
Apologies Cllr Liz Mallinson Cumbria County Council 
 Cllr Lynn Travis Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council 
 Cllr Carole Burdis North Tyneside Council 
 Cllr Jackie Meldrum Lambeth London Borough Council 

 
In Attendance Duncan Selbie Public Health England 
 Chris Bull Public Health England 
 Richard Humphries King’s Fund 

 
 

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



E3 LAYDEN HOUSE BY RAIL 

Thameslink - Farnngdon, Barbican 

(Restricted service), City Thameslink 

&
LAYDEN HOUSE BY UNDERGROUND 

Circle/ Metropolitan/ Hammersmith & City -

Farringdon, Barbican 

Central Line - Chancery lane 

LAYDEN HOUSE BY BUS 

63, 55, 38,259 

Layden House

76-86 Turnmill Street,
London
EC1 M 5LG

Tel: 020 7664 3000 Fax: 020 7664 3030

*The Local Government Association will be based at Layden House whilst refurbishment takes place at their offices in Smith Square.

Public Transport
Layden House is served well by public transport. The 
nearest mainline station is Farringdon (Circle, Hammersmith & City and Metropolitan Lines. It also has Overground lines)
Bus routes - Farringdon Station
63 - Kings Cross - Crystal Palace Parade (Stop A/B)
55 - Oxford Circus -High Road Leyton (Stop E/K)
243 - Redvers Road - Waterloo Bridge (Stop E/K)

Cycling Facilties
The nearest Santander Cycle Hire racks are on Theobold's Road. 
For more information please go to www.tfl.gov.uk

Car Parks
Smithfield Car Park - EC1A 9DY
NCP Car Park London Saffron Hill - EC1N 8XA

Page 40


	Agenda
	3 Care and support reform
	4 The Government's health and social care policy agenda
	5 Community Wellbeing Board achievements 2016/17
	6 Update on Other Board Business
	7 Note of the last meeting
	 Layden House map



